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Dear Mr. Harper:

We have reviewed your June 30, 2016 response to our comment letter and have the
following comments. In some of our comments, we may ask you to provide us with information
so we may better understand your disclosure.

Please respond to these comments within ten business days by providing the requested
information or advise us as soon as possible when you will respond. If you do not believe our
comments apply to your facts and circumstances, please tell us why in your response.

After reviewing your response to these comments, we may have additional comments.
Unless we note otherwise, our references to prior comments are to comments in our June 17,
2016 letter.

Form 10-K for the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2015

Properties, page 37

Our Oil and Natural Gas Reserves, page 37

Proved Undeveloped Reserves, page 40

1. We note the disclosure provided on page F-42 stating “the Company does not have any
proved undeveloped reserves which have remained undeveloped for five years or more.”
Given the requirements of Rule 4-10(a)(31)(ii) of Regulation S-X, if any of your proved
undeveloped reserves will take more than five years to develop since initial disclosure,
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please refer to question 131.03 in the SEC Compliance and Disclosure Interpretations
(C&DIs), issued October 26, 2009 and updated May 16, 2013, and tell us what specific
circumstances justify a period longer than five years; otherwise, please remove these
undeveloped reserves as proved reserves. You may find the C&DIs on our website at the
following address:

http://www.sec.gov/divisions/corpfin/guidance/oilandgas-interp.htm.

You may contact John Hodgin, Petroleum Engineer, at (202) 551-3699 if you have
questions regarding the comments. Please contact me at (202) 551-3745 with any other
questions.

Sincerely,
/s/ Brad Skinner for
H. Roger Schwall

Assistant Director
Office of Natural Resources



